
           

Citizens' Panel for Review of
Police Complaints and Use of
Force
Regular Meeting

  
  

July 11, 2023 | 6 p.m.
 

Chandler Police Department, Main Station Community Room
250 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, AZ

  

 
  

Panel Members
Samuel Enoch
Gina Giammona
Jill Slavin
Diane Mardis
Debra Schinke
Flor Martinez
Jason Diefenbacher
Laurie Fagen
Tamra Ingersoll
James Bogert
Dawn Vukadinovich
Carlos Lozano
Joshua Whitaker
Christopher Heo
Joseph Yang
 

Police Members   
Cmdr. Jason Sieczowski
Sgt. Dan Greene
Det. George Arias
Cmdr. Travis Feyen
Lt. Michael Prendergast

   
 

Pursuant to Resolution No. 4464 of the City of Chandler and to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given to the
members of the Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force and to the general public that
the Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force will hold a REGULAR MEETING open to
the public on Wednesday, July 11, 2023, at 6:00 p.m., at Chandler Police Department, Main Station Community
Room, 250 E. Chicago Street, Chandler, AZ. One or more Commissioners may be attending by telephone.

Persons with disabilities may request a reasonable modification or communication aids and services by
contacting the City Clerk's office at (480) 782-2181(711 via AZRS). Please make requests in advance as it
affords the City time to accommodate the request. 

Agendas are available in the Office of the City Clerk, 175 S. Arizona Avenue.  

Page 1 of 3 Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force



Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
Regular Meeting Agenda - July 11, 2023

 
           

Call to Order/Roll Call
 

Scheduled Public Appearances
 

1. Brian Vaughn - Citizen Complaint (re Case #23-P-900559).   

 

Unscheduled Public Appearances
Members of the audience may address any item not on the agenda. State Statute prohibits the Board or Commission from discussing an
item that is not on the agenda, but the Board or Commission does listen to your concerns and has staff follow up on any questions you
raise.
 

Consent Agenda
 

2. April 4, 2023 Meeting Minutes
  Move Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force to approve the minutes of the April

4, 2023, meeting.
 

Action Agenda
 

3. Review and discuss the Shooting Incident of September 17, 2021, presented by Det.
Ynclan (2021-102022)

  

 

4. Review and discuss the Shooting Incident of June 1, 2022, presented by Det. Duncan (2022-61139)
 

  

 

5. Annual Use of Force Review, 2022
  Review and discuss the 2022 Use of Force Analysis
 

6. Annual Report: Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
  Review and discuss the Council memo for the Annual Report: Citizen's Panel for Review of Police

Complaints and Use of Force, July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023
 

7. Use of Force Summary Quarter 1 2023
  Discussion regarding the Use of Force Summary for the first quarter of 2023
 

Discussion
 

Briefing
 

Page 2 of 3 Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force



           

Member Comments/Announcements
 

8. Introduction of newly appointed members  Gina Giammona, Jill Slavin, Diane Mardis, Debra Schinke,
Flor Martinez, Jason Diefenbacher, and Joseph Yang

  

 

Calendar
 

9. Next meeting will be Tuesday, October 3, 2023.   

 

Information Items
 

10. Upcoming personnel changes   

 

Adjourn
 

Page 3 of 3 Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force



ITEM  2 

Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force      Police 
Memo No. 
       

Date: 07/11/2023
To: Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
From: Pamela Leon, Police Administrative Specialist
Subject:Consent Agenda

Items listed on the Consent Agenda may be enacted by one motion and one
vote. If a discussion is required by members of the Board or Commission, the
item will be removed from the Consent Agenda for discussion and
determination will be made if the item will be considered separately.

Proposed Motion:
Move Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force to
approve the minutes of the April 4, 2023, meeting.

Attachments
April 4 Meeting Minutes 



CITIZENS’ PANEL FOR REVIEW OF POLICE COMPLAINTS AND USE OF FORCE REGULAR 

MEETING MINUTES 

 

April 4, 2023 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Chairman Fagen called the meeting to order at approximately 6:12 pm.  

 

Members in Attendance: 

Chairman Laurie Fagen 

Vice Chair Tamra Ingersoll 

Panel member Sam Enoch 

Panel member James Bogert 

Panel member Dawn Vukadinovich 

Panel member Aaron Harris 

Panel member Josh Whitaker 

Panel member Bill Wallace 

 

Members Absent: 

Panel member Christopher Heo 

Panel member Carlos Lozano 

Panel member Jen Rooney 

Panel member Shadow Asgari 

 

Staff in Attendance: 

Assistant Chief Melissa Deanda 

Cmdr. Travis Feyen 

Lt. Robert Dykstra 

Lt. Michael Prendergast 

Det. George Arias 

Sgt. Nicole Vasey 

Officer Ronald Bromund 

Ean White, Assistant City Attorney 

Pamela Leon, Staff Liaison 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



2. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 

a. Minutes of January 10, 2023 

Panel member Fagen moved to approve the minutes of the January 10, 2023,  

Citizens’ Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force meeting. 

Panel member Ingersoll seconded the motion. 

The minutes were approved by all Panel members present. 

3. SCHEDULED/UNSCHEDULED PUBLIC APPEARANCES/CALL TO PUBLIC 

a. None 

 

4. ACTION AGENDA 

a. Presentation by the Training Unit on the BolaWrap 

 

b. Review, discuss, and approve the Use of Force Summary of the third 

quarter of 2023 

 

 There were questions and discussions, but no questions specific to the use of 

 force.  Panel member Wallace moved to approve the Use of Force summary, 

 seconded by Panel member Enoch.  

 

 The Use of Force Summary of the third quarter of 2023 was approved by all 

 Panel members present.  

 

c. Review, discuss, and approve the Use of Force Summary of the fourth 

quarter of 2023 

 

Panel members asked a number of questions regarding the use of a sage gun 

and what a sage gun is. Cmdr. Feyen described what a sage gun is which was 

in reference to Summary 9.  

 

Panel members asked a number of questions regarding body worn camera 

usage, with particular attention to incidents in which an officer’s camera fell 

off their person. Det. Arias described situations such as that in Summary 11, 

in which the officers’ camera is still picking up demands and recordings even 

though it was no longer attached to their person. Cmdr. Feyen stated the 

department is currently researching better mounts to avoid cameras falling 

off.  

 

 



Panel member Harris moved to approve the Use of Force Summary of the 

fourth quarter, seconded by Panel member Bogert.  

 

The Use of Force Summary of the fourth quarter of 2023 was approved by all 

Panel members present.   

 

 

5. BRIEFING ITEMS 

None 

6. ANNOUNCEMENTS 

 

None 

 

7. CALENDAR/FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

Next meeting will be Tuesday, July 11, 2023.  

 

8. INFORMATION ITEMS 

 

Panel member appreciation for outgoing members Shadow Asgari, Bill 

 Wallace, Jen Rooney, and Aaron Harris Sr.  

 

9. ADJOURNMENT 

Panel member Ingersoll moved to adjourn, seconded by Panel member 

Bogert. The motion was approved by all Panel members present, and the 

meeting adjourned at approximately 6:57 p.m. 



ITEM  5 

Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force      Police 
Memo No. 
       

Date: 07/11/2023
To: Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
From: Pamela Leon, Police Administrative Specialist
Subject: Use of Force Review

Proposed Motion:
Review and discuss the 2022 Use of Force Analysis

Attachments
Annual Use of Force, 2022 





















ITEM  6 

Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force      Police 
Memo No. 
       

Date: 07/11/2023
To: Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
From: Pamela Leon, Police Administrative Specialist
Subject:Review and discuss the Council memo for the Annual Report: Citizens' Panel

for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force, July 1, 2022 - June 30,
2023

Proposed Motion:
Review and discuss the Council memo for the Annual Report: Citizen's Panel for
Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force, July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023

Attachments
Annual Report 2023 



 
 

Chandler Police Department - Chief Memo No. 23-040 
 
Date:  July 11, 2023 
 
To:  Mayor and Council 
 
Thru:  Josh Wright, Acting City Manager 
  Sean Duggan, Chief of Police 
  Bryan Cox, Assistant Chief of Police 
 
From:  Jason Sieczkowski, Police Commander 
 
Subject: Annual Report 
 Citizens’ Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force 
 July 1, 2022 – June 30, 2023 
 
The Citizens’ Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force, which is comprised of 
Chandler residents and police employees, was established to review police shootings and 
police incidents involving uses of force. The panel also reviews the internal investigation on 
police complaints when a citizen requests such a review of police department findings. There 
were no such requests this past fiscal year.  
 
The panel meets quarterly to review the utilization of force. Pursuant to Ordinance No. 3135, 
this annual report is a summary of the number of reviews conducted and the 
recommendations made during the past year.   
 
This memo shall be submitted once approved at the July 11, 2023, regular scheduled 
meeting. 
 
Date of Meeting #1: July 12, 2022 
 
Minutes of the April 5, 2023, meeting was approved with no noted corrections.  
 
There was a review and discussion of the Use of Force summaries from the first quarter of 
2022, which included twenty (20) incidents and thirty-four (34) applications of force. 
 
The panel members approved the summary review as presented.  
 
The panel reviewed and approved the 2021 Annual Use of Force Analysis.  



Memo No. 23-040 
July 11, 2023 
Page 2 
 
 
Date of Meeting #2: August 2, 2022 
 
A special meeting was held to ratify a past action of the July 12, 2022, meeting.  
 
All panel members approved the ratification of the July 12, 2022, Agenda of the Citizens’ Panel 
for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force.  
 
Date of Meeting #3: October 4, 2022 
 
Meeting was cancelled due to lack of quorum.  
 
Date of Meeting: November 8, 2022 
 
A special meeting was called due to October 4, 2022, meeting not meeting quorum.  
 
Special meeting was cancelled due to lack of quorum.  
 
Date of Meeting: January 10, 2023 
 
Minutes of the July 12, 2022, and August 2, 2022, meeting was approved with no noted 
corrections.  
 
Det. Ynclan gave a presentation on the 2021 officer-involved shooting related to Chandler 
Police report 2021-0772. The panel members approved the finding of the investigation.  
 
Det. Ynlcan gave a presentation of the 2021 officer-involved shooting related to Chandler 
Police report 2021-80290. The panel members approved the finding of the investigation.  
 
There was a review and discussion of the Use of Force summaries from the second quarter 
of 2022, which included twenty-four (24) incidents and eighty-nine (89) applications of force.  
 
The panel members approved the summary review as presented.  
 
The panel held their annual elections for the positions of Chair and Vice Chair. Panel member 
Fagen was elected as Chair, Ingersoll was elected as Vice Chair.  
 
Date of Meeting: April 4, 2022 
 
Minutes of the January 10, 2022, meeting was approved with no noted corrections.  
 



Memo No. 23-040 
July 11, 2023 
Page 3 
 
The Training Unit gave a presentation on the BolaWrap.  
 
There was a review and discussion of the Use of Force summaries from the third quarter of 
2022, which included fourteen (14) incidents and twenty-seven (27) applications of force.  
 
There was a review and discussion of the Use of Force summaries from the fourth quarter 
of 2022, which included twelve (12) incidents and fifteen (15) applications of force.  
 
The panel members approved summaries from the third and fourth quarter of 2022, as 
presented.   
 
Panel Members:  
 
As of March 23, 2023. The Citizen’s Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force is 
full, with 15 citizen members. Panel members Gina Giammona, Jill Slavin, Diane Mardis, 
Debra Schinke, Flor Martinez, Jason Diefenbacher, and Joseph Yang were appointed on 
March 23, 2023. All newly appointed members will be in attendance at the July meeting.  
 
Commander Sieczkowski will be providing support to Chairman Fagen with the facilitation of 
the meetings. Sgt. Greene and Officer Bromund served as primary staff members. 
Commander Feyen and Lieutenant Prendergast will serve as alternate members.  



ITEM  7 

Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force      Police 
Memo No. 
       

Date: 07/11/2023
To: Citizens' Panel for Review of Police Complaints and Use of Force
From: Pamela Leon, Police Administrative Specialist
Subject: Use of Force Review

Proposed Motion:
Discussion regarding the Use of Force Summary for the first quarter of 2023

Attachments
Use of Force Summary First Quarter 




























































	Agenda
	AI 4119 April Meeting Minutes
	       ATT_April 4 Meeting Minutes
	AI 4227 Annual Use of Force Review, 2022
	       ATT_Annual Use of Force, 2022
	AI 43714371
	       ATT_Annual Report 2023
	Chandler Police Department - Chief Memo No. 23-040

	AI 4369 Use of Force Summary
	       ATT_Use of Force Summary First Quarter

